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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
To

The Members of Whitehilis intesior Limited
Report on the audit of the Ind AS financial statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying Ind AS financial statements of Whitehills Interior Limited (“the
Company”), which comprise the balance sheet as at March 31, 2024, and the Statement of Profit and
Loss and statement including other comprehensive income, statement of cash flows and the
statement of changes in Equity for the year then ended, and notes to the Ind AS financial
statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid Ind AS financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act,
2013 {"Act’) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the
accounting principles generally accepted in india, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March
31, 2024, its profit including its Comprehensive income, its cash flows and changes in equity for the
year ended on that date.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Ind AS on auditing specified under section 143 (10)
of the Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the
auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the Ind AS financial statements section of our report. We
are independent of the Company in accordance with the code of ethics issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India togetner with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit
of the Ind AS financizi statements under the provisions of the Act and the rules thereunder, and we
have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the code

o7 etnics.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion.

Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professiocnal judgment, were of most significance in
our audit of the Ind AS financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in
the context of our audit of the Ind AS financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion
thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.
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Information other than the Ind AS financial statements and auditors’ report thereon

The Company’s board of directors is responsible for the preparation of the other information. The
other information comprises the information included in the Board’s Report including Annexures to
Board’s Report, Business Responsibility Report but does not include the Ind AS financial statements
and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the Ind AS financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the Ind AS financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the standalone Ind AS financial statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit
or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this
other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Management’s responsibility for the ind AS financial statements

The Company’s board of directors are responsible for the matters stated in section 134 (5) of the Act
with respect to the preparation of these Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair view of
the financial position, financial performance including other comprehensive income, cash flows and
changes in equity of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in
Indig, including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under section 133 of the Act.

This responsibility aiso includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the
provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting
frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making
iudgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation
of the Ind AS financial statement that give a true and fair view and are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the Ind AS financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern a2nd using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to
liguidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The board of directors are also respcnsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the ind AS financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance sbout whether the Ind AS financial statements as
a2 whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor’s report that includes our opinicn. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is
not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatemenis can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these Ind AS financial statements.




As part of an zudit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional scepticism throughout the zudit. We zlso:

e |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Ind AS financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve coliusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

= Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Companies
Act, 2013, we are aiso responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the company has
adequate internal financial controls system in place and the cperating effectiveness of such
controls.

¢ Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence cbtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to
events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a
going concarn. If we conclude that 2 material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the Ind AS financial statements or,
if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the
audit evidence obtained up to the date of cur audiior’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Ind AS financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the Ind AS financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internzl control that we identify during our audit.

We zlso provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding indegendence and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters
that were of most significance in the zudit of the Ind AS financial statements of the current period
and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless
law or regulation precludes public disclosure zbout the matter or when, in extremely rare
circumstances, we determine that 2 matier should not be communicated in our report because the
adverse consequences of doing so wouid reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest
benefits of such communication.




Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1

d)

g)

The statement on matters specified in the Companies {Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 (“the
Order”), issued by the Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of
the Act, is provided in “Annexure” A, statement on the matters specified in paragraph 3 and 4 of
the Order.

As required by Section 143 (3) of the Act, we report that:

We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purpose of our audit.

In our opinion, proper books of account as required by the law have been kept by the Company,
in electronic mode on servers physicaliy located in India so far as it appears from our
examination of those books.

The Balance Sheet and the Stetement of Profit and Loss including the Statement of
Comprehensive income, the cash flow statement and the changes in equity dealt with by this
Report are in agreement with the beaks of account.

In our opinion, the aforesaid ind AS financial statements comply with the Ind AS Accounting
Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts)
Rules, 2014.

On the basis of the written representations received from the Directors as on 31 March 2024
taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the existing Directors is disqualified as on 31
March 2024 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.

With respect to adequacy of the internal controls cver financial reporting of the Company and
the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate report in “Annexure B”.

in our opinion and the based on the information presented to us, managerial remuneration has
been paid for the year ended 31 March 2024 hence reporting under section 197 read with
schedule V to the act is required.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule
11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our
information and according to the explanations given to us:

i.  The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financizl position in its
Ind AS financial statements — Refer Note 33 to the Ind AS financial statements.

ii.  The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for
which there were any material foreseeable losses;

iii.  There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education
and Protection Fund by the Company.

iv.  a) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledg
funds have been advanced or loaned or invested {either from borrowe
premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the company to orin a




V.

vi.

recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or
indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever
by or on behalf of the Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee,
security or the like on behalf of the Ultimats Bzneficiaries;

b} The management has represented that, to the hest of its knowledge and belief, no
funds have been received by the Company from any persons or entities, including foreign
entities (“Funding Parties”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or
otherwise, that the Company shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other
persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding
Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of
the Ultimate Beneficiaries; and

¢) Based on such audit precedures performed that have been considered reasonable and
appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to
believe that the representations under sub-clause (a) and (b) contain any material
misstatement '

Company has not paid any dividend during the year.

As proviso to rule 3(1) of the Companies (accounts) Rules, 2014 is applicable for the
Company only w.e.f April 1, 2024, reporting under this clause is not applicable.

For NIKHIL WARANKAR & Co
Chartered Accountants

FRN: 153107W
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CANikhil Wargnkar .Cf?.
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Proprietor
M. No: 198283
Date: 29* May 2024, At Pune.
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Annexure - A referred to in our Independent Auditor’s Report to the member of Whitehills Interior Limited on
the Ind AS financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024

Based on the audit procedures performed for the purpose of reporting a true and fair view on the IND AS
financial statements of the Company and taking into consideration the information and explanations given to us
and the books of account and other records examined by us in the normal course of audit, we report that:

i)
Ly,

Fixed Asset Record:

a) (A) The Company has mzintzined proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative
details and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment.

(B) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of Intangible Assets.

b) The major Property, Plant and Equipment of the company have been physically verified by the
management at reasonable intervals during the year and no material discrepancies were
noticed on such verification.

c) According to the information and explanation given to us, there are no immovable properties
held by the Company hence reporting under this clause is not applicable.

d) The Company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment (including Right of Use assets)
or intangible assets or both during the year.

e) According to the information and explanation given to us, no proceedings have been initiated or
are pending against the company for holding any benami property under the Benami
Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) and rules made thereunder during the year.

The company is a service company; accordingly, it does not hold any physical inventories.
Accordingly, paragraph 3(ii} of the order is not applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the company has made investments
during the year. The company has granted unsecured Icans to companies, in respect of which the
requisite information is as below.

{a) A. Based on the audit procedures carried on by us and as per the information and explanations
given to us, the Company hzs given loans or advances in the nature of loans to subsidiaries. The
Company does not hold any investment in any joint ventures or associates.

B. Based on the audit procedures carried on by us and as per the information and explanations
given to us, the Company has given unsecured loans to parties other than subsidiaries as listed
below. The Company has nct stood guarantee or provided security.

Particulars ' Loans
Aggregate amount during the vear

Subsidiaries ¥ 5047.73Lakhs
Others -

Balance outstanding as at balance sheet date
Subsidiaries < 0.09 Lakhs




vi)

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on the audit procedures
conducted by us, in our opinion the investment made and the terms and conditions of the grant
of loans and advances in the nature of loans during the vear are, prima facie, not prejudicial to
the interest of the Company.

(c) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of
the records of the Company, in the case of loans given and in case of advances in the nature of
loans given, in our opinion the repayment of principal and payment of interest has been
stipulated and the repayments or receipts have teen regular.

{d) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of
the records of the Company, there is no overdue amount for more than ninety days in respect of
loans given and advances in the nature of loan given.

(e) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of
the records of the Company, there is no loan or advance in the nature of loan granted falling due
during the year, which has bsen renswed or exitended or fresh loans granted to settle the over
dues of existing loans given to same parties.

(f) According te the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of
the records of the Company, the Company has granted loans or advances in the nature of lcans
either repayable on demand or without specifying any terms or period of repayment which are
as below:

All Parties Promoters Related Parties

Aggregate amount of
loans/ advances in nature
of loans:

-Repayable on demand £0.09 Lakhs - <0.09 Lakhs
-Repayable within one yezar - - -
Percentage of 100% - 100.00%
loans/advances in nature of
loans to total loans

According to the information and explanation given to us, the company has complied with the
provisions of Sections 185 and 186 of the companies act, 2013 in respect of loans granted,
investments made and guarantees and securities provided, as applicable.

The Campany has not accepted any deposits or amounts which are deemed to be deposits under the
directives of the Reserve Bank of india and the provisions of Sections 73 to 76 or any other relevant
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules framed thereunder, where applicable.
ccordingly, the provisions of clause 3{v) of the Order arz not applicable.
oo S
i . . . . p\&-‘._’ar-\,(f W
To the best of our knowledge and belief, the Central Government has not spectﬂe}d’\nﬁé fice™gf
cost records under sub-section (1) of Secticn 143 of the Act, in respect of Cofi S3hv’
service. Accordinglv. the provisions of clause 3ivit o7 the Order are not anolicable.




vii)

viii)

xi)

xiii)

Xiv)

a) The Company is reguiar in depoesiting undisputed statutory dues inciuding Goods and Services Tax,
provident fund, employees’ state insurance, income-tax, sales-tax, service tax, duty of customs, duty
of excise, value added tax, cess and any other statutory dues, as applicable, with the appropriate
authorities. Further, no undisputed amounts payabie in respect thereof were outstanding at the
year-end fora period of more than six manths from the date they became payable.

b) There are no dues in respect of Goods and Services Tax, provident fund, employees’ state
insurance, income-tax, sales-tax, service tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, value added tax, cess
and any other statutory dues that have not been deposited with the appropriate authorities on
account of any dispute.

According to the information and explanation given to us, company has no transactions, not
recordedin the books of acccunt have been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in
the tax assessments under the income Tax Act, 1961 (43 of 1961);

According to the information and sxplanation given to us, the Company does not have any loans or
borrowings from any financial institution, banks, government or debenture holders during the year.
Accordingly, paragraph 3(ix) of the order is not applicable to the Company.

(a) The Company has not raised any money by way of initial public offer or further public offer
(including debt instruments) during the vear, further, based on the records examined by us and
according to information and explanations given to us, the Company has not raised money by way of
term loans during the year. Accordingly, paragraph 3 (x} of the Order is not applicable.

(b) The Company has made preferential allotment of shares during the year and have complied
with the provisions of section 42 and 62 of the Act read with applicable rules thereto and relevant
provisions of the SEBI Regulations. According to information and explanations given to us and on
the basis of our examination of the records of the Company, the company has not made any
private placement of shares and has not raised funas by way of issue of fully, partly or optionally
convertible debentures. during the year. Further, the funds raised to preferential allotment of
shares were utilized for the purposes for which such funds were raised.

(a) According to the information and explanation given to us, any fraud by the company or any fraud
on the company has not been noticed or reported during the year;

(b) According to the information and explanation given to us, no report under sub-section (12) of
section 143 of the Companies Act has been filed by the auditors in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under
rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government;

(c) According to the informaticn and explanation given to us, no whistle-blower complaints,
received during the year by the company;

In our opinion and according to the information and expianations given to us, the Company is not a
Nidhi company. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xii) of the Order is not applicable.

Transactions with the related parties are in compliance with sections 177 and 188 of Companies Act
2013 where applicable and the details have been disclosed in the notes to the financial statements,
as required by the applicable standards.

(a) According to the information zind explanations given to us, the company has an internal audit
system commensurate with the size and nature of its business;




Xv)

Xvi)

xvii)

xviii)

Xix)

{(b) We have considered the reports of the Internal Auditors for the period under audit;

According to the information and expianations given to us and based on our examination of the
records of the Company, the Company has not entered into non-cash transactions with directors or

persons connected with him. Accordingly, paragraph 3{xv) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us, we are of the opinion that

i) The provision of section 45-IA of the Reserve bank of India Act, 1934 (2 of 1934) are not
applicable to the Company. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause xvi (a) of
the order is not applicable to the Company

i) The Company has not conducted any Non-Banking Financial or Housing Finance
activities without obtaining a valid Certificate of Registration (COR) from the Reserve
Bank of India as per the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934.

iii) The Company is not 2 Core Investment Company as defined in the regulations made by
Reserve Bank of India. Accordingly, the reguirement to report on clause 3{xvi)(c) of the
Order is not applicable to the Company

iv) The company do not have any CICs which are registered with the Reserve Bank of India
as per the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on the audit procedures
conducted we are of opinion that the company has not incurred any cash losses in the financial
year andthe immediztely preceding financial year;

There has been resignation of the statutory auditors during the vyear and there were no
issues, concerns or objections raised by the outgoing auditors.

On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realization of financial assets and
payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the financial statements, our
knowledge of the Board of Directcrs and management plans and basad on our examination of the
evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to
believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report indicating that
company is incapable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when
they fall due within a period cf one year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this
is not an assurance as to the future vizbility of the company. We further state that our reporting is
based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any
assurance that all liabilities faliing due within a period of cne year fromthe balance sheet date, will
get discharged by the company as 2nd when they fall due.




xx)  According to explanation and information given to us, company has transferred unspent amount to
a fund specified n schedule VIIi to the companies Act, within a period of 6 months from the expiry
of financial year in accordance with the provision of section 135 of the companies Act 2013.

For NIKHIL WARANKAR & Co
Chartered Accountants
FRN: 153107W

JOnE L .
CA Nikhil Warankar

Proprietor

M. No: 198983
Date: 29" May 2024, At Pune.
UDIN: 24198983BKFXYK6366




Annexure “B” to the Independent Auditor’s Report

(Referred to in paragraph 2 (f) under ‘Report on other legai and regulatory reguirements’ section of
our report to the Members of Whitehiils intericr Limitad of even date)

Report on the internal financial controls over financial reporting under clause (i) of sub —
section 3 of section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Whitehills Interior Limited
(“the Company”) as at March 31, 2024, in conjunction with our audit of the financial statements of
the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s responsibility for internal financial contro!s

The board of directors of the Company is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal
financial controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the
Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on
Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India. These responsibiiities include the design, implementation and maintenance of
adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and
efficient conduct of its business, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds
and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of
reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors’ responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the internal financial controls over financial reporting of
the Company based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on
Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India and the standards on auditing prescribed under Section
143 (10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls.
Those standards and the guidance note require that we compiy with ethical requirements and plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial
controls over financial reporting ware established and maintained and if such controls operated
effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of
internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal
financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and
testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal contro! based on the
assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment
of the risks of material misstatement in the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained, is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion on the Company’s internai financial control system over financial reporting.

Meaning of internal financial cor:trols over financial reporting

A company’s internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the relizbility of financial reporting and the preparation of IND AS
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles. A company’s internal financia! contro! over financial reporting includes those policies and
procedures that (i) pertain to the mzintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and
fairly refiect the transactions and disgositions of the assets of the company; {ii) provi
assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of




statements in accordance with generaily accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and
expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of management
and directors of the company; and (iii} provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely
detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s assets that could have a
material effect on the IND AS financial statements.

Disclaimer of Opinion

The system of internal financial controls over financial reperting of the Company were not made
available to us to enable us to determine if the Company has established adequate internal financial
control over financial reporting and whether such interna! financial controls were operating effectively
as at March 31, 2024.

We have considered the disclaimer reported above in detarmining the nature, timing, and extent of
audit tests applied in our audit of the financial statements of the Company, and the disclaimer does
not affect our opinion on the financiai statements of the Company.

For NIKHIL WARANKAR & CO.
Chartered Accountants
(FRN:153107W)
M "
CA Nikhil Wargnkar
Proprietor
fviernbership Number: 198283
Date: 29th May, 2024 at Pune.
UDIN: 24198S883BKFXYW353S




Whitehills Interior Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024
(All amounts in rupees lakhs except share and per share data, unless otherwise stated)

(a

(b

(b

=

Company overview

Whitehills Interior Limited (‘the Company’) was incorporated on 20/11/2022 as a public company under the Companies Act, 2013. The cempany
is engaged in the business of interior designing, interior designing consultancy, manufactures, assembling, reassembling, repairing, importing,
exporting, selling, buying, exchanging, altering, letting on hire, distributing or dealing in all kinds of ceramic items for home and offices, curtains,
panel products, household utensils, china and glass goods, flooring, wallpapers, kitchenware, carpets and other decorative and utility items etc.

Summary of significant accounting policies

Statement of compliance and basis of preparation

The financial statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2024 have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (“Ind
AS") notified under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules,
2016 (as amended from time to time), and presentation requirements of Division Il of Schedule Ill to the Companies Act, 2013, (Ind AS compliant
Schedule 111}, as applicable to the financial statement.

These financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention on an accrual and going concern basis except for certain
financial assets and liabilities which are measured at fair value. The financial statements are presented in INR and all values are rounded to the
nearest lakhs (IMR 00000), except when otherwise indicated.

Functicnal and presentation currency
The company’s financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (INR), which is the fundctional and presentation currency.

New and amended standards adopted by the Company

Ind AS 115 - Revenue from contracts with customers

MCA has notified Ind AS 115 - Revenue from contracts with customer, mandatorily applicable from 01 April 2018 either based on a full
retrospective or modified retrospective application. The standard requires the Company to recognise revenue to depict the transfer of promised
goods or services to customers in an amount that reflects the consideration to which the entity expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods
or services. It establishes a new five-step model that will apply to revenue arising from contracts with customers.

The application of the new accounting policy has required management to make the following judgments:

The Company is required to assess each of its contracts with customers to determine whether performance obligations are satisfied over time or
at a point in time in order to determine the appropriate method of recognising revenue. The Company has assessed that based on the sale and
purchase agreements entered into with customers and the provisions of relevant laws and regulations, where contracts are entered into to
provide real estate assets to customer, the Company does not create an asset with an alternative use to the Company and usually has an
enforceable right to payment for performance completed to date. In these circumstance the Company recognises revenue over time. Where this
is not the case revenue is recognised at a point in time.

Determination of transaction prices

The Company is required to determine the transaction price in respect of each of its contracts with customers. In making such judgment the
Company assess the impact of any variable consideration in the contract, due to discounts or penalties, the existence of any significant financing
component in the contract and any non-cash censideration in the contract. In determining the impact of variable consideration the Company uses
the "most-likely amount” method in IndAS 115, whereby the transaction price is determined by reference to the single most likely amount. in a
range of possible consideration amounts.

Transfer of control in contracts with customers

In cases where the Company determines that performance obligations are satisfied at a point in time, revenue is recognised when control over the
assets that is the subject of the contract is transferred to the customer. In the case of contracts to sell real estate assets this is generally when
the unit has been registered through a sale deed and legal enforceable right to collect payment is established.

In addition, the application of Ind AS 115 has resulted in the following estimation process:

Allocation of transaction price to performance obligation in contracts with customers

For registered contracts through a sale deed , but the project is not complete, revenue from such contracts is recognised over time. The Company
has elected to apply the input method in allocating the transaction price to performance obligations where revenue is recognised over time. The
Company considers that the use of the input method which requires revenue recognition on the basis of the Company’s efforts to the satisfaction
of the performance obligation provides the best reference of revenue actually earned. In applying the input method the Company estimates the
cost to complete the projects in arder to determine the amount of revenue to be recognised. These estimates include the cost of providing
infrastructure, potential claims by contractors as evaluated by the project consultant and the cost of meeting other contractual obligations to
the customers.




(c) Fair value measurements

(d

(e

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants
at the measurement date, regardless of whether that price is directly observable or estimated using another valuation technique. The fair value
measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or the transfer the liability takes place either: in the principal
market for the asset or liability, or in the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability. The fair value
of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that
market participants act in economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant's ability to generate economic benefits by using the
assets in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Company uses valuation technigues that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to measure fair
value, maximizing the use of relevant observable inputs and minimizing the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorized within the fair value hierarchy,
described as follows, based on the lowest input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

Level 1: Quated (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2: Valuation techniques for which the lowest input that is significant to the fair value measurement is directly or indirectly observable.

Level 3: Valuation techniques for which the lowest input that is significant to the fair value measurement is unobservable.

For assets and liabilities that are recognized in the financial statements on recurring basis, the Company determines whether transfers have
occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorization (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period. The assets measured at fair value on a non-recurring basis, primarily consists of non-
financial assets such as intangible assets.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined the class of assets and liabilities on the basis of the nature, characteristic
and risks of the assets and liability and the level of fair value hierarchy as explained above.

Current versus non-current classification
The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current/ non-current classification.
(1) An asset is classified as current when it is:
+ Expected to be realized or intended to sold or consumed in normal operating cycle
« Held primarily for the purpose of trading
- Expected to be realized within twelve months after the reporting peried, or
« Cash or cash equivalents unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least twelve months
after the reporting period
(ii) All other assets are classified as non-current.
(#i1) A liability is classified as current when:
- It is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle
« It is held primarily for the purpose of trading
- It is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or
* There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period
(iv) All other liabilities are classified as non-current.
(v) Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities.
Based on the nature of service, the Company has ascertained its operating cycle as twelve months for all assets and liabilities.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost, net of accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any. The cost
comprises purchase price, cost directly attributable to bring the assets to its working condition for the intended use and borrowing costs, if
capitalization criteria are met. Any trade discounts and rebates are deducted in arriving at the purchase price.

Subsequent expenditure related to an item of Property, plant and equipment is added to its book value only if it increases the future benefits
from the existing asset beyond its previously assessed standard of performance. All other expenses on existing Property, plant and equipment,
including day-to-day repair and maintenance expenditure and cost of replacing parts, are charged to the statement of profit and loss for the
period during which such expenses are incurred.

Gains or losses arising from de-recognition of Property, plant and equipment are measured as the difference between the net disposal proceeds
and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognized in the statement of profit and loss when the asset is de-recognized.

The Company identifies and determines cost of asset significant to total cost of the asset having useful life that is materially different from that
of the remaining life.

Property, plant and equipment under installation or construction as at balance sheet date are shown as capital work-in-progress and the related
advances are shown as other assets.

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is provided on the WDV basis over the useful life prescribed under schedule Il of the Companies
Act, 2013. The identified compenents, if any, are depreciated on their useful lives; the remaining asset is depreciated over the life of the
principal asset. Schedule Il of the Companies Act, 2013, prescribes useful life for fixed assets. Further schedule Il also allows companies to use
higher/lower useful live and residual value if such useful live and residual values can be technically supported and justification for differences is
disclosed in the financial statements. The Management believes that depreciation rate currently used fairly reflects the estimate of the useful
lifes and residual value of property plant and equipments, though these rates in certain cases are different from lives prescribed under Schedule
1.

e




()

(h)

The Company has estimated the following useful lives to provide depreciation on its Property, plant and equipment, as follows:

Asset description Useful life
Computers and servers 5 years
Networking equipments 5 years
Furniture and fittings 7 years
Office equipments 5 years

Lease-hold improvements are amortised over the useful life of assets or the primary period of lease, whichever is shorter. Pro-rata depreciation is
provided from / upto the date of purchase / disposal for assets purchased or sold during the year. Assets individually costing INR 5 or less are
depreciated over a period of one year.
The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are reviewed at each financial year end and
adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. Following initial recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost
less accumulated amortization and accumulated impairment losses, if any,

Intangible assets are amortized on a WDV basis over the useful life prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013. The Company uses a rebuttable
presumption that the useful life of an intangible asset will not exceed ten years from the date when the asset is available for use. Such intangible
assets and intangible assets not yet available for use are tested for impairment annually, either individually or at the cash-generating unit level.
All other intangible assets are assessed for impairment whenever there is an indication that the intangible asset may be impaired.

The amortization period and the amortization method for an intangible asset are reviewed at least at the end of each reporting year. Changes in
the expected useful life or the expected pattern of consumption of future economic benefits embodied in the asset are considered to modify the
amortization period or methed, as appropriate, and are treated as changes in accounting estimates. The amortization expense on intangible
assets with finite lives is recognized in the statement of profit and loss unless such expenditure forms part of another asset.

Gains or losses arising from de-recognition of an intangible asset are measured as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset and are recognized in the statemant of profit and loss when the asset is de-recognized.

The company has estimated the following useful lives to provide amortisation on intangible assets, as follows:

Asset description Useful life

Software 5 years

Foreign currency transactions and translations
These financial statements are presented in Indian rupees (INR’), the currency of India, which is the functional currency of the company.

Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded by the company at their respective functional currency spot rates at the date of the
transaction. Foreign-currency denominated monetary assets and liabilities are translated to the relevant functional currency at exchange rates in
effect at the balance sheet date. Exchange differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary items are recognized in the statement of
profit and loss. Foreign currency non-monetary assets / liabilities, measured at historical cost are translated at the exchange rate prevalent at
the date of the initial transaction. Non-monetary items measured at fair value are translated at the exchange rate prevalent at the date when the
fair value was determined. The gain / loss arising on translation of non-monetary item measured at fair value are treated in line with the
recognition of the gain / loss on the change in the fair value of the item [other comprehensice income or profit and loss, respectively].

Revenue recognition

In March 2018, Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA") had notified Ind AS 115, ‘Revenue from Contract with Customers’, replacing the existing
revenue recognition standards Ind AS 18, ‘Revenue’. As per the new standard, revenue is recognised to depict the transfer of promised goods or
services to a customer in an amount that reflects the fair value of the consideration received or receivable which the entity expects to be
entitled in exchange for those goods or services. Ind AS 115 establishes a five-step model that is applied to revenue earned from a contract with a
customer, regardless of the type of revenue transaction or the industry. The standard is effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 April,
2018. The Company has adopted to the extent applicable this standard using the modified retrospective approach.

Revenue is recognized when, or as, control of a promised service transfers to a customer, in an amount that reflects the consideration to which
the Company expects to be entitled in exchange for transferring those services. To recognize revenues, the following five step approach is
applied: (1) identify the contract with a customer, (2) identify the performance obligations in the contract, (3) determine the transaction price,
(4) allocate the transaction price to the performance obligations in the contract, and (5) recognize revenues when a performance obligation is
satisfied.

Revenue recognition for time-and-material

Revenues related to time-and-materials are recognized over the period the services are provided using an input method (efforts expended).
Because of control transferring over time, revenue is recognized based on the extent of progress towards completion of the performance
obligation. The Company generally use the efforts expended as measure of progress for the company's contracts because there is a direct
relationship between input and productivity.

Revenue recognition for fixed price contracts



Fixed price contracts are often modified to account for changes in contract specifications and requirements. The Company considers contract
modifications to exist when the modification either creates new or changes the existing enforceable rights and obligations. Most of contract
modifications are for services that are not distinct from the existing contract due to the significant service provided in the context of the contract
and are accounted for as if they were part of that existing contract, The effect of a contract medification en the transaction price and our
measure of progress for the performance obligation to which it relates, is recognized as an adjustment to revenue (either as an increase inora
reduction of revenue) on a cumulative catch-up basis.
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Revenue is recognized net of discounts and allowances, goods and services taxes, and includes reimbursement of out-of-pocket expenses, with the
corresponding out-of-pocket expenses included in cost of revenues.

The company extend credit to clients based upon Management's assessment of their creditworthiness. The company assess the timing of the
transfer of services to the customer as compared to the timing of payments to determine whether a significant financing component. exists. As a
practical expedient, the company do not assess the existence of a significant financing component when the difference between payment and
transfer of deliverables is a year or less. If the difference in timing arises for reasons other than the provision of finance to either the customer or
the company, no financing compenent is deemed to exist, The primary purpose of our invoicing terms is to provide customers with simplified and
predictable ways of purchasing our services, not to receive or provide financing from or to customers.

Incentive revenues, volume discounts, or any other form of variable consideration is estimated using either the sum of probability weighted
amounts in a range of possible consideration amounts (expected value), or the single most likely amount in a range of possible consideration
amounts (most likely amount), depending on which method better predicts the amount of consideration realizable. Transaction price includes
variable consideration only to the extent it is probable that a significant reversal of revenues recognized will not occur when the uncertainty
associated with the variable consideration is resolved. The estimates of variable consideration and determination of whether to include estimated
amounts in the transaction price may involve judement and are based largely on an assessment of anticipated performance and all information
that is reasonably available to the company.

Contract. liabilities consist of advance payments and billings in excess of revenues recegnized. The company classify contract liability as current or
noncurrent based on the timing of when they expect to recognize the revenues. The company classify it's right to consideration in exchange for
deliverables as either as accounts receivable or a contract assets. Accounts receivable are recorded at the inveiced amount and do not bear
interest. Revenue recognized but not billed to customers is classified as contract assets in the statements of financial position. Contract assets
represents contracts where right to consideration is unconditional (i.e. only the passage of time is required before the payment is due).

Finance income

For all debt instruments measured either at amortised cost or at fair value through other comprehensive income, interest income is recorded
using the effective interest rate (EIR). EIR is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash payments or receipts over the expected life
of the financial instrument or a shorter period, where appropriate, to the gross carrying amount of the financial asset or to the amortised cost of
a financial liability. When calculating the effective interest rate, the company estimates the expected cash flows by considering all the
contractual tarms of the financial instrument (for example, prepayment, extension, call and similar options) but does not consider the expected
credit losses.

Dividend income
Revenue is recognised when the company’s right to receive dividend is established, which is generally the shareholders' approval date.

Borrowing Costs

Borrowing costs that are attributable to the acquisition or construction of qualifying assets are capitalized as part of the cest of such assets. A
qualifying asset is one that necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale. All cther borrowing costs are
charged to the statement of profit and loss.

Borrowing costs also include exchange differences to the extent regarded as an adjustment to the borrowing costs.

Leases
The company assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. That is, if the contract conveys the right to control the
use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration.

Policy applicable before April 01, 2019

The determination of whether an arrangement is (or contains) a lease is based on the substance of the arrangement at the inception of the lease.
The arrangemeht is, or contains lease, if fulfilment of the arrangement is dependent on the use of specific asset or assets and the arrangement
cenveys the right to use the asset or assets, even if that right is explicitly in an arrangement.

A lease is classified at the inception date as finance lease or operating lease.

Finance lease
Finance lease, which effectively transfer to the Company substantially all the risks and benefits incidental to the ownership of the leased item,
are capitalised at the inception of the lease term at the lower of the fair value of leased property and present value of minimum lease payments.

Lease payment are apportioned between the finance charges and reduction of lease liability so as to achieve a constant rate of interest on the
remaining balance of lease liability. Finance charge are recognised as finance costs in the statement of profit and loss. Lease management: fee,
legal charges and other initial direct costs of lease are capitalized as they are directly attributable to the asset.

A leased asset is depreciated on straight line basis over the useful life of the asset. However if there are no reasonable certainty that the
company will obtain the ownership by the end of the lease term the capitalized asset is depreciated on straight line basis over the shorter of the
useful life of the asset or the lease term.

Operating lease
Lease where the lessor effectively retains subs tya
Operating lease payments are| recognised a ens\étq’g fsté%’gﬁe
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isks and benefits of ownership of the leases term are classifies as operating leases.
f profit and loss on a straight-line basis over the lease term.
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Palicy applicable with effect from April 01, 2019

Company as a lessee

A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for
consideration. To assess whether the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset, the Company assesses whether:

- the contract involves the use of an identified asset:

- the company has the right to obtain substantially all of the economic benefits from the use of the asset throughout the period of use; and

- the company has the right to direct the use of the asset.

At inception or on reassessment of a contract that contains lease component, the company allocates the consideration in the contract ta each
lease component on the basis of the relative stand-alone price of the lease component and the aggregate stand-alone price of the non-lease
componants.

Right-of-use assets

The Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA") through Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2019 and Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Second Amendment Rules, had notified Ind AS 116 - Leases which replaced the erstwhile standard and its interpretations. Ind AS 116 had outlined
the principles for the recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosure of leases for both lessees and lessors thereby introducing a single, on-baiance
sheet lease accounting model for lessees.

The company's lease asset classes primarily consist of leases for office spaces and other assets. The company assesses whether a contract contains a lease,
at inception of a contract. A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract cenveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in
exchange for consideration. To assess whether a contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset, the company assesses whether : (i) the
contract involves the use of an identified asset (if) the company has substantially all of the economic benefits from use of the asset through the period of the
lease and (iii) the company has the right to direct the use of the asset.

The lease liability is initially measured at amortized cost at the present value of the future lease payments. The lease payments are discounted using the
interest rate implicit in the lease or, if not readily determinable, using the incremental borrowing rates in the country of domicile of these leases. Lease
liabilities are remeasured with a corresponding adjustment to the related ROU asset if the Company changes its assessment of whether it will exercise an
extensicn or a termination option. The incremental borrowing rate used was 8.85% depending on the amount involved and tenure of the lease agreement.

Shert-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The company applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to its short-term leases of machinery and equipment (i.e., those leases that
have a lease term of 12 months or less from the commencement date and do not contain a purchase option). It also applies the lease of low-value
assets recognition exemption to leases of office equipment that are considered to be low value. Lease payments on short-term leases and leases
of low-value assets are recognised as expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Company as a lessor

Leases in which the company does not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of an asset are classified as
operating leases. Rental income arising is accounted for on a straight-line basis over the lease terms. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating
and arranging an operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised over the lease term on the same basis as
rental income. Contingent rents are recognised as revenue in the period in which they are earned.

Employee benefits expense and retirement

(1) Gratuity liability

The company provides for gratuity, a defined benefit plan (the “Gratuity Plan”) covering eligible employees. The Gratuity Plan provides a lump
sum payment to vested employees at retirement, death, incapacitation or termination of employment, of an amount based on the respective
employee’s base salary and the tenure of employment. The liability is determined based on an actuarial valuation carried out by an independent
actuary as at the balance sheet date using the projected unit credit method. Actuanial gains / losses are recognized immediately in the balance
sheet with a corresponding debit or credit to retained earnings through other comprehensive income in the year in which they occur.

(if) Compensated absences

The employees of the company are entitled to compensated absences which are both accumulating and non-accumulating in nature. The
employees can carry forward up to the specified portion of the unutilized accumulated compensated absences and utilize it in future periods or
receive cash as per the company policy. The expected cost of accumulating compensated absences is determined by actuarial valuation (using the
projected unit credit methed) based on the additional amount expected to be paid as a result of the unused entitlement that has accumulated at
the balance sheet date. The expense on non-accumulating compensated absences is recognized in the statement of profit and loss in the year in
which the absences occur.

The company presents the liability as current liability in the balance sheet, to the extent it does not have an uncenditional legal and contractual
right to defer its settlement for twelve months after the reporting date.

(ifi) Provident fund
The company’s contribution to provident fund is charged to the statement of profit and loss. The company's contributions towards provident fund
are deposited with the Regional Provident Fund Commissioner under a defined contribution plan, in accordance with Employees’ Provident Funds
and Miscellaneous Provisions Act, 1957.
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(iv) Share based compensation

Stock-based compensation represents the cost related to stock-based awards granted to employees of the company by its ultimate holding
company. In accordance with Ind AS 102, ‘Accounting for share based payment’, the company measures stock-based compensation cost at grant
date, based on the estimated fair value of the award and recognizes the cost (net of estimated ferfeitures) over the requisite service period. The
company estimates the fair value of stock options and the cost is recorded under the head employee benefit expense in the statement of profit
and loss with corresponding increase in “Share Based Payment Reserve".

(v) Short-term employee benefits comprising employee costs including performance bonus is recognized in the statement of profit and loss on the
basis of the amount paid or payable for the period during which services are rendered by the employee.

Tax expense

Tax expense comprises current and deferred income tax. Current income-tax is measured at the amount expected to be paid to the tax
authorities in accordance with the Income-tax Act, 1961 enacted in India and tax laws prevailing in the respective tax jurisdictions where the
company operates. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted or substantively enacted, at the reporting
date.

Current income tax relating to items recognized outside profit or loss is recognized outside profit or loss (either in other comprehensive income or
in equity). Current tax items are recognized in correlation to the underlying transaction either in OCI or directly in equity. Management
periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulations are subject to interpretation
and establishes provisions where appropriate.

Deferred inccme taxes reflect the impact of temporary differences between taxable income and accounting income originating during the current
year and reversal of timing differences for the earlier years. Deferred tax is measured using the tax rates and the tax laws enacted or
substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognized for all taxable temporary differences, except when the deferred tax lability arises from the initial
recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects
neither the accounting profit nor the taxable profit or loss.

Deferred tax assets are recognized for deductible temporary differences, the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses. Deferred
tax assets are recognized only to the extent that it s probable that taxable profit will be available against which deductible temporary
differences, the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilized, except when the deferred tax asset arises from the
initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the
accounting profit nor the taxable profit or loss.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that
sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognized deferred tax assets are re-
assessed at each reporting date and are recognized to the extent that it has become preobable that future taxable profit will allow the deferred
tax assets to be recovered.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss, except when they are related to items that are recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, in which case, the current and deferred tax are also recognized in other comprehensive income or directly in equity
respectively.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset, if a legally enforceable right exists to set-off current tax assets against current tax liabilities and the
deferred tax assets and deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the same taxation authority.

Provision and contingent liability

A provision is recognized when the company has a present obligation as a result of past event, and it is probable that an outflow of resources
embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation that can be reliably estimated. Provisions are not discounted to its present
value and are determined based on best estimate required to settle the obligation at the balance sheet date. These estimates are reviewed at
each balance sheet date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimates.

Provisions for onerous contracts are recognized when the expected benefits to be derived by the Company from a contract are lower than the
unavoidable costs of meeting the future obligations under the contract. Provisions for onerous contracts are measured at the present value of
lower of the expected net cost of fulfilling the contract and the expected cost of terminating the contract.

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events whose existence will be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence
of one or more uncertain future events beyond the control of the company or a present obligation that is not recognized because it is not
probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation. A contingent liability also arises in extremely rare cases where
there is a liability that cannot be recognized because it cannot be measured reliably. The company does not recognize a contingent liability but
discloses its existence in the financial statemen
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Financial instruments
A financial instrument is a contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or equity instrument of another entity.

Financial assets

All financial assets are recognized initially at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition of finandial assets
(other than financial assets at fair value through profit or loss) are added to the fair value measured on initial recognition of financial asset.
Purchase and sale of financial assets are accounted for at trade date.

(i) Financial instruments at amortized cost

A financial instrument is measured at the amortized cost if both the following conditions are met:

a) the asset s held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting contractual cash flows, and

b) contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest (SPP1) on the
principal amount outstanding.

After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest rate (EIR) methed.
Amortized cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR.
The EIR amortization is included in other income in the statement of profit and loss. The losses arising from impairment are recognized in the
statement of profit and loss. This category includes cash and bank balances, loans, unbilled revenue, trade and other receivables.

(ii) Financial instrument at Fair Value through Other Comprehensive Income (OCl)

A financial instrument is classified and measured at fair value through OCI if both of the following criteria are met:

a) The objective of the business model is achieved both by collecting contractual cash flows and selling the financial assets, and

b) The asset’s contractual cash flows represent solely payments of principal and interest.

Financial instruments included within the OC| category are measured initially as well as at each reporting date at fair value. Fair value
movements are recognized in OCl. On derecognition of the asset, cumulative gain or loss previously recognized in QCl is reclassified frem OCl to
statement of profit and loss.

(iii) Financial instrument at Fair Value through Profit and Loss

Any financial instrument, which does not meet the criteria for categorization at amortized cost or at fair value through other comprehensive
income, is classified at fair value through profit and loss. Financial instruments included in the fair value through profit and loss category are
measured at fair value with all changes recognized in the statement of profit and loss.

(iv) De-recognition of financial assets
A financial asset is primarily derecognized when the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or the company has transferred its
rights to receive cash flows from the asset.

Financiel liabilities
All financial liabilities are recognized initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings and payables, net of directly attributable
transaction costs.

The subsequent measurement of financial labilities depends on their classification, as described below:

(i) Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit
or loss.

(ii) Financial liebilities at amortised cost

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the Effective Interest Rate [EIR]
method. Gains and losses are recognised in the statement of profit and loss when the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the EIR
amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR.
The EIR amortisation is included as finance costs in the statement of profit and loss.

(iii) De-recognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires. When an existing financial
liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially
modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability. The
difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet if there is a currently enforceable legal
right to offset the recognized amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, to realize the assets and settle the liabilities
simultaneously.

Impairment

{i) Financial assets
The Company recognizes loss allowances using the expected credit loss (ECL) model for the financial assets which are not fair valued through
profit or loss. Loss allowance for trade receivables with no significant financing compenent is measured at an amount equal to lifetime ECL. For
all other financial assets, expected credit losses are measured at an amount equal to the twelve month ECL, unless there has been a significant
increase in credit risk from initial recognition in which case those are measured at lifetime ECL. The a of expected credit losses (or
reversal) that is required to adjust the loss allowance at the W&o the amount that is re
impairment gain or loss in statement of fprofit and loss. %,
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(ii) Non-financial assets

At the end of each reporting period, the company reviews the carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible assets to determine whether there is
any indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated
in order to determine the extent of the impairment loss (if any). Where it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an individual
asset, the company estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs. Where a reasenable and consistent
basis of allocation can be identified, corporate assets are also allocated to individual cash-generating units, or otherwise they are allocated to the
smallest company of cash-generating units for which a reasonable and consistent allocation basis can be identified. Recoverable amount is the
higher of fair value less costs to sell and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset for
which the estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted. If the recoverable amount of an asset (or cash-generating unit) is estimated to
be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment
loss is recognized immediately in the statement of profit and loss, unless the relevant asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which case the
impairment loss is treated as a revaluation decrease.

An impairment loss is reversed in the statement of profit and loss if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable
ameunt. The carrying amount of the asset is increased to its revised recoverable, amount provided that this amount does not exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined (net of any accumulated amortisation or depreciation) had no impairment loss has been recognised for
the asset in prior years.

Segment reporting

An operating segment is a component of the company that engages in business activities from which it may earn revenues and incur expenses,
including revenues and expenses that relate to transactions with any of the company's other components, and for which discrete financial
information is available. Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating
decision maker ('CODM’).

The Company's Board of Director’'s has been identified as the CODM who is responsible for financial decision making and assessing performance.
The company has a single operating segment as the operating results of the Company are reviewed on an overall basis by the CODM.

Earnings per share ('EPS')
Basic eamnings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the peried attributable to equity shareholders by the weighted
average number of equity shares outstanding during the period.

Diluted EPS amounts are computed by dividing the net profit attributable to the equity holders of the company by the weighted average number
of equity shares considered for deriving basic earnings per share and also the weighted average number of equity shares that could have been
issued upon conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares. The diluted potential equity shares are adjusted for the proceeds receivable had the
shares been actually issued at fair value (i.e. the average market value of the outstanding shares). Dilutive potential equity shares are deemed
converted as at the beginning of the year, unless issued at a later date. Dilutive potential equity shares are determined independently for each
year presented.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand, shert-term deposits with an original maturity of three months
or less, which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

For the purpose of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and short-term deposits, as defined above, net of outstanding bank
overdraft as they are considered an integral part of the company’s cash management.

Government Grants

The company recognizes grants in the financial statements as a reduction from cost of sales to match them with the expenditures for which they
are intended to compensate or as other income in cases where grants is not linked to expenditure incurred. Grants are recognized in the financial
statements when there is reasonable assurance that the company will comply with the conditions for their receipt and a reasonable expectation
that the funds will be received. In certain circumstances, the receipt of an grant may net be subject to any condition or requirement to incur
further costs, in which case the grant is recognized in the financial statements for the period in which it becomes receivable after claim is filed or
company has finalized amounts that would be available.

Use of estimates and judgments

The preparation of the company's financial statements requires management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the
reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities at the end of each reporting period.
However, uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that could require a material adjustment to the carrying
amount of the asset or liability affected in the future periods.

The key assumptions cancerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting period are discussed
below. The bompany based its assumptions and estimates on parameters available when the financial statements were prepared. Existing
circumstances and assumptions about future developments, however, may change due to market changes or circumstances arising beyond the
control of the company. Such changes are reflected in the assumptions when they occur.

Impairment of non-financial assets
The company assesses whether there are any indicators of impairment f Q“manaal assets at each reporting date. Non-financial assets are
tested for impairment when there are indicators that the carryimg n

racoverable.
future cash flows from the asset or cash generating unit




(i)

(i)

t)

Impairment of financial assets

The company assesses at the end of each reporting period whether there is any objective evidence that a financial asset is impaired. To
determine whether there is objective evidence of impairment, the Company considers factors such as the probability of insolvency or significant
financial difficulties of the debtor and default or significant delay in payments.

Percentage of completion of contracts

The company uses the percentage of completion method using the input (effort expended) method to measure progress towards completion in
respect of fixed price contracts. Percentage of completion method relies on estimates of total expected efforts to complete the project. These
estimates are assessed continually during the term of the contracts and the recognized revenue and profit are subject to revision as the contract
progresses to completion. When estimates indicate that a loss will be incurred, the loss is provided for in the period in which the loss becomes
probable.

Centracts with customers often include promises to transfer multiple services to a customer. Determining whether services are considered distinct
performance obligations that should be accounted for separately or together requires significant judgment based on nature of the contract,
transfer of control over the service, ability of the service to benefit the customer on its own or together with other readily available resources
and the ability of service to be separately identifiable from other promises in the contract.

Judgments made in applying accounting policies
In the process of applying the company's accounting policies, Management has made the following judgments, apart from those involving
estimations, which has the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements:

Income taxes

Significant judgment is involved in determining the company’s provision for income taxes. There are certain transactions and computations for
which the ultimate tax determination is uncertain during the ordinary course of business. The company recognises liabilities for expected tax
issues based on estimates of whether additional taxes will be due. Where the final tax outcome of these matters is different from the amounts
that were initially recognised, such differences will impact the income tax and deferred tax provisions in the period in which such determination
is made.

Determination of functional currency

The determination of functional currency often requires significant judgment where the primary economic environment in which they operate
may not be clear. In determining the functional currency, judgment is required to determine the currency that mainly influences sales prices for
goods and services and of the country whose competitive forces and regulations mainly determines the sales prices of its goods and services. This




Whitehills Interior Limited
Reg.Off:6Th Floor VB Capitol Building Rangehill Road Bhosalenagar Shivajinagar Pune Maharashtra-india 411007

CIN:U26990PN2022PLC216228 - - =
Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2024

Sr. No. Particulars Note - March -
31,2024 March 31,2023 |
L: Assets
1 Non-current assets
(a) Property, plant and equipment
(b) Capital work in-progress 3 72.46
(C) Right of use assets 4 66.22 £8.92
(d) Financial assets
Otherfinancial assets 5 10.91 7.40
(e) Deferred tax asset (net) 6 3.61 1.07
Total non-current assets 153.20 97.39
2 Current assets
(a) Inventories
(b) Financial assets
(i) Trade receivables 7 4,416.56 26.05
(i) Cash and cash equivalents 8 407.89 .75
{iv) Loans 9 0.09 104.81
(v) Other financial assets 10 2,386.14 28.90
(c) Other current assets 11 2,778.85 118.85
Total current assets 9,990.53 301.27
Total assets 10,143.73 398.67
1. Equity & liabilities
1 Equity
(a) Equity share capital 12 10.00 10.00
(b) Other equity 1,441.71 £6.02
Total equity 1,451.71 ©6.02
2 Liabilities
Non-current liabilities
(a) Financizl liabilities
(i) Borrowings
(i) Lease liabilities 13 49.90 71.33
(b) Provisions 14 7.00 0.06
Total non-current liabilities 56.90 71.40
3 Current liabilities
(a) Financial liabilities
(i) Borrowings 15 4,110.21 €4.50
(ii) Lease liabilities 16 21.44 18.48
(iii) Trade payables 17
(A) total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises < 0.07
(B) total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises 3,925.53 £8.58
and small enterprises
(b) Income tax liability (net) 18 220.26 29.25
(c) Other current liabilities 19 356.87 49.88
(d) Provisions 20 0.31 0.50
Total current liabilities 8,635.12 231.26
Total equity & liabilities 10,143.73 358,66
(0.00) 0.00
As per our report of even date Forand on behalf of the Board of Directors Whitehills Interior Limited,
For Nikhil Warankar & Co
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration Number: 153 \\\\

il Warankar hishek Narbaria

Proprietor Director
Membership number: 198983 DIN:01733060 DIN: 01873087
Pune, May 29, 2024 Place: Pune, May 29, 2024 Place: Pune, May 29, 2024

UDIN: 24198983BKFXYW3539
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Whitehills Interior Limited
Reg.Off:6Th Floor VB Capitol Building Rangehill Road Bhosalenagar Shivajinagar Pune Maharashtra-India 411007
CIN:U26990PN2022PLC216228
Statement of Profit and loss for the year ended 31 march 2024
(¥ in Lakhs)
Year ended
Particulars 31.03.2024 31.03.2023
(Audited) {Audited)

Income
a) Revenue from operations 10,424.44 417.486
b) Otharincome 0.67 0.22
TotalIncome 10,425.11 417.68
Expenses
a) Cost of services 1,698.24 232.51
b) Changes in inventories of finished goods 5,867.09 -
c) Employee benefits expense 250.51 45.23
d) Finance costs 117.35 3.26
e) Depreciation and amortisation expense 22.70 9.46
f) Other expenses ( Any item exceeding 10% of the total expenses relating to 622.56 4.68
continuing operations to be shown separately)
Total expenses 8,578.45 295.14
Profit/(Loss) before exceptional, Extraordinary items and taxes (1-2) 1,846.65 122.54
Exceptionalitem - -
Profit before extraordinary items and tax 1,846.65 122.54
Extracrdinary ltems - -
Profit before Tax 1,846.65 122.54
Tax expense

Current tax 493.50 37.60

Deferred tax [2.54) (1.07)
Total Tax Expenses 490.96 36.52
Net Profit/(loss) for the period (5-6) 1,355.70 £6.02
Other Comprehensive Income
Other comprehensive income not to be reclassified to - -
profit or loss in subsequent periods
Remeasurement (loss)/gain on defined benefit plans - -
Income tax effect - -
Net other Comprehensive income not to be reclassified - -
to profit or loss in susequent period
Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax - -
Total comprehensive income for the year, net of tax 1,355.70 86.02
Paid-up equity share capital (face value of ¥ 10/- each) 1.00 1.00
Reserve excluding Revaluation Reserves as per - -
Balance sheet of previous accounting vear
Earnings Per Share (before extraordinary items)
(of Rs. 10/- each)(not annualised):
Basic (inX) 1,355.70 £6.02
Diluted (in %) 1,355.70 £6.02
Earnings Per Share (after extraordinary items)
(of Rs. 10/- each)(not annualised):
Basic (inX) 1,355.70 £6.02
Diluted (in ) 1,355.70 £€6.02

Summary of significant accounting policies
The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements

As per our report of even date
For Nikhil Warankar & Ce

ff <
Rirm Registratio ber: - : the’ irectors-of whitehijlsinterior Ltd

@J\.\M
DIN: 01873087

Place: Pune, May 29, 2024

Proprietor 2 = i
Membership Numbgs: 98983
Pune, May 29,2027,



Whitehills Interior Limited
Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended March 31, 2024
CIN:U26990PN2022PLC216228
il v | Meren3, _2014_‘__--[ _ March 31, 2023
A e g EART ‘X in Lakhs w
A) Cash flow from operating activities
Net profit/ (loss) before tax 1,846.65 122.54
Adjustments for:
Depreciation & amartization expense 22.70 9.46
Finance costs i 117.35 3.26
Interest income (0.67) (0.22)
Operating profit / (loss) before working capital changes 1,986.04 © 135.03
Adjustments for changes in working capital:
(Increase)/decrease in trade receivables (4,390.51) (26.05)
(Increase)/ decrease in other financial assets (2,349.75) (58.84)
(Increase)/decrease in other assets (2,660.90) (118.95)
Increase/ (decrease) in trade payables 3,856.87 68.65
Increase/ (decrease) in other financial liabilities M 3
Increase/ (decrease) in other liabilities 504.95 79.12
Increase/ (decrease) in provisions 0.31 0.50
Operating profit / (loss) after working capital changes {3,052.98) 79.46
Direct taxes (paid)/ refund (493.50) (37.60)
Net cash generated from / (used in) operating activities (3,546.48) 41.86
h flow from investing activiti

Sale proceeds/Purchase of Fixed Assets (72.46) -
Interest received on other financial assets - -
Interest received 0.67 -
Loans to related parties 104.52 (104.61)
Net cash generated from /{used in) investing activities 32.73 (104.61)
C}) Cash flow from financing activities
Loans from related parties 4,045.71 64.50
Issue of equity share capital - 10.00
Lease Liability (18.48)
Interest paid " (117.35) -
Dividends paid on equity share including dividend distribution tax -
Net cash generated from/(used in) financing activities 3,909.88 74.50
Net 1n:reuel(decrease] in cash & cash equivalents 396.13 11.75
Add: cash and cash equivalents as at the beginning of the year 11.75 -
cash & cash equivalents as at the end of the year 407.88 11.75
Reconciliation of cash and cash equivalents as per statement of cash flows
Cash and cash equivalents
Cash in hand &
Balances with banks - on current accounts 407.89 11.75
|Balance as per statement of cash flows 407.89 11.75
Note: 0.00 0.00

1. The above Cash Flow Statement has been prepared under the indirect method set out in Indfan Accounting Standard (IND AS)
-7, ‘Statement of Cash Flows' as specified in the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015.
2. Direct Taxes paid are treated as arising from operating activities and are not bifurcated between investment and financing

3. All figures in brackets indicate cash outflow

As per our report of even date

For Nikhil Warankar & Co

Chartered Accountants o 4 s

Firm Registration Number: #53107W, 1, , o S Eehaft of the Board of Directors of whitehills interior Ltdrﬂ,.«:‘;f"f; 5 *‘va\}
,,"' \::V_\‘ b \a¥ ! 3 J,\\\ :._.-cni.,{

N L
Nikhil Warankar l
Proprietor -
Membership number: 1989
Pune, May 29, 2024 5
UDIN: 24198983BKFXYW353

hek Na
Director
DIN: 01873087
Pune, May 29, 2024 -

\
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Standalone Segment information for the Quarter ended 30th September, 2024

(T in Lakhs)
Quarter ended Year ended
Particulars 31.03.2024 31.12.2023 30.09.2023 31.03.2024 31.03.2023
(Audited) (Unaudired) (Unaudited) (Audited) (Audired)
1. Segment Revenue
(a) Segment- Rental = R
{b) Segment-Interior Fit Qut 1,434.48 5,323.84 3,349.50 10,423.13
(c) Unallocated “
Total Segment Revenue 1,434.48 5,323.84 3,349.50 10,423.13 -
Less: Inter Segment Revenue - - - - -
Revenue From Operations 1,434.48 5,323.84 3,349.50 10,423.13 -
2. Segment Result (Profit)(+)/Loss (-) before
tax and interest from Each segment)
(a) Segment- Rental - - - - -
(b) Segment- Interior -115.70 1,243.44 777.03 1,964.01 -
(c) Unallocated -
Total Profit/(loss) before tax -115.70 1,243.44 777.03 1,964.01 -
Less: (i) Finance Cost 112.14 1.64 1.74 117.35 3.26
Less: (i) Other Un-allocable Expenditure net off]
Un-allocable income e = - = -
Profit Before Tax -227.84 1,241.80 775.30 1,846.65 -3.26
3. Segment Assets
(a) Segment- Rental - - - - -
{b) Segment- Interior 10,143.73 10,143.73 398.67
(¢) Unallocated - -
Total Segment Assets 10,143.73 - - 10,143.73 338.67
Un-allocable Assets
Net Segment Assets 10,143.73 - - 10,143.73 398.67
4. Segment Liabilities
(a) Segment- Rental " - R C B
(b} Segment- Interior 8,692.01 - + 8,692.01 302.66
(c) Unallocated = -
Total Segment Liabilities 8,692.01 - - 8,692.01 302.66
Un-allocable Liakilities - - —t— - -
Net Segment Liahilities 8,692.01 - /‘:\\-p\ LA e“gK§532.01 302.66
X
=
* A
\ <
\%
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Whitehills Interior Limited
Statement of changes in equity for the year ended March 31, 2024

SR s annARIaAn
CiliU20990PN202

(a) Equity share capital % in Lakhs % in Lakhs

Fariuiars As at 31 March As at 31 March

2024 2023
Balance as at the beginning of the year 10.00 -
Changes in equity share capital due to prior period errors - -
Restated balance as at the beginning of the year 10.00 -
Changes in equity share capital due to prior period errors . -
Shares issued during the year 5 10.00
Balance as at the end of the year 10.00 10.00
(b) Other equity
Reserves and Surplus Equity Instruments
through Total Equity
Particulars General Reserve Securities Premium Retained Other attributable to Equity
Reserve Earnings Comprehensive Holders
Income
% in Lakhs T in Lakhs % in Lakhs T in Lakhs % in Lakhs

Balance as at April 01, 2022 - - . - -
Changes in accounting policy or prior period errors # # + - .
Restated balance as at April 01, 2023 - - - - -
Profit / (loss) for the year - - 86.02 - 86.02
Other comprehensive income d # : - .
Balance as at March 31, 2023 - - 86.02 - 86.02
Balance as at April 01, 2023 - - 86.02 - 86.02
Changes in accounting policy or prior period errors : 3 . - -
Restated balance as at April 01, 2023 . - 86.02 - 86.02
Profit / (loss) for the year - - 66.22 = 66,22
Other comprehensive income A 3 - .
Balance as at March 31, 2024 - - 152.24 - 152.24

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements

As per our attached report of even date
For Nikhil Warankar & Co

Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration Number: 153107W

o~
Nikhil Warankar

Froprietor

Membership number: 198983

Pune, May 29, 2024

UDIN: 24198983BKFXYW3539

For and on _umrm\_‘muoﬁmmmunmgm_ of Directors Whitehills Interior Limited,
PLC216228,

- ”u,\.aﬂ.._.nﬁoﬂ
DIN: 01873087
Pune, May 29, 202 Pune, May 29,2023
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Whitehills Interior Limited

CIN:U26990PN2022PLC216228
Notes forming part of the Financial Statements for the Period ended Mar 31, 2024
(ALl amounts in T lakhs except equity share and per equity share data, unless otherwise stated)

The Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA”) through Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2019 and Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Second Amendment Rules, had notified Ind AS 116 - Leases which replaced the erstwhile standard and its interpretations. Ind
AS 116 had outlined the principles for the recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosure of leases for both lessees and lessors thereby
introducing a single, on-balance sheet lease accounting model for lessees.

The Company’s lease asset classes primarily consist of leases for office spaces. The Company assesses whether a contract contains a lease, at inception
of a contract. A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in
exchange for consideration. To assess whether a contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset, the Company assesses whether :
(i) the contract involves the use of an identified asset (i) the Company has substantially all of the economic benefits from use of the asset through the
period of the lease and (iii) the Company has the right to direct the use of the asset.

At the date of commencement of the lease, the Company recognizes a right-of-use (ROU) asset and a corresponding lease liability for all lease
arrangements in which it is a lessee, except for leases with a term of 12 months or less (short-term leases) and low value leases. For these short-term
and low-value leases, the Company recognizes the lease payments as an operating expense on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease.

The lease liability is initially measured at amortized cost at the present value of the future lease payments. The lease payments are discounted using
the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if not readily determinable, using the incremental borrowing rates in the country of domicile of these leases.
Lease liabilities are remeasured with a corresponding adjustment to the related ROU asset if the Company changes its assessment of whether it will
exercise an extension or a termination option.The incremental borrowing rate used was 8.85% depending on the amount involved and tenure of the
lease agreement.

Non-current assets

3, Right-of-use assets
Particulars Z in Lakhs

Building
Carrying value
Balance as at April 01, 2022 =

Additions 98.38
Deductions/ disposals 5
Bezlance as at March 31, 2023 98.38
Balance as at April 01, 2023 98.38
Additiens -
Deductions/ disposals -
Balance as at Mar 31 2024 98.38

Accumulated depreciation /
amortisation
Balance as at April 01, 2022 -

Depreciation for the year 9.46
Deductions cue to termination of lease

agreement i
Balance as at March 31, 2023 9.46
Balance as at April 01, 2023 9.46
Depreciation for the year 22.70
Deductions cue to termination of lease

agreement i
Balance as at Mar 31 2024 32.16

Net carrying value
Balance as at March 31, 2023 88.92
Balance as at March 31, 2024 66.22

If ~
The aggregate depreciation expense on ROU assets is included under depreciation and amortization expense in the statement of Profit and Loss.

The following is the break-up of current and non-current lease liabilities as at March 31, 2024

. Asat As at
Particulars \
March 31, 2024 | March 31, 2023 - -
Current lease liabilities 21.44 18.48 -
Non-current lease liabilities 49.90 71.33
Total 71.33




CIN:U26990PN2022PLC216228
Notes forming part of the Financial Statements for the Period ended Mar 31, 2024
(All amounts in T lakhs except equity share and per equity share data, unless otherwise stated)




CIN:U26990PN2022PLC216228

Notes forming part of the Financial Statements for the Period ended Mar 31, 2024
(All amounts in ¥ lakhs except equity share and per equity share data, unless otherwise stated)

The following is the movement in lease liabilities:-

Particulars Lol Bt
March 31, 2024 | March 31, 2023
Balance at the beginning of the year 89.81 -
Add : New leases during the year - 98.52
Add : Finance cost accrued during the period 6.76 -
Less : Cancellation of leases during the year - -
Less : Payment of lease liabilities 25.24 8.70
Balance the end of the year 71.33 89.81

The table below provides details regarding the contractual maturities of lease liabilities on an undiscounted basis:

Particulars

Asat
March 31, 2024

As at
March 31, 2023

Less than one year

One to five years 71.33 89.81
Maore than five vears - -
Total 71.33 89.81
Interest Expenses of Lease Liabilities
Particulars e S

March 31, 2024 | March 31, 2023
Interest on lease liabilities 6.76 3.26 L .
Total 6.76 326 1




Whitehills Interior Limited
CIN:U26990PN2022PLC216228
Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024
{All amounts are in lakhs except equity share and per equity share data, unless otherwise stated)

3. Other non-current assets

Particular: e et
ArReiiala Mar 31, 2024 | Mar 31, 2023
CWIP 72.46 0.00
Total 72.46 0.00

Financial assets
5. Other non-current financial assets

As at As at

rticul
Particulars Mar 31, 2024| Mar 31, 2023

% in Lakhs % in Lakhs

Unsecured, considered good

Security deposits 10.91 7.40

Loans to other than related parties - -
Total 10.91 7.40

6.Deferred tax assets (net)

As at As at

Particulars Mar 31, 2024 Mar 31, 2023

X in Lakhs % in Lakhs

Deferred tax assets

Lease liability 17.95 24.99
Initial measurement of financial instruments 0.56 0.81
Provision for employee benefits 1.76 0.02

Total 20.28 25.81

Deferred tax liabilities

Fair value of right of use 16.67 24.74
Total 16.67 24.74
Deferred tax assets (net) 3.61 1.07

7. Trade receivables

As at As at

Particutars Mar 31, 2024 | Mar 31, 2023

% in Lakhs % in Lakhs

Trade receivables
Unsecured, considered good® 4416.56 26.05
Unsecured, considered doubtful -
Less: Provision for expected credit loss =

Total 4,416.56 26.05

Note:

There are no debts due by the director or other officer of the company or any of them either severally or jointly
with any other person or debts due by firm including limited liability partnerships (LLP), Private company
respectively in which any director or other officer is a partner or a director or a member.

Trade receivables ageing as on March 31, 2024

% in Lakhs
Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment Total
5 otal
Particulars Less than 6 6 months -1 More than 3
1-2 years | 2-3 years
months year years

(i) Undisputed trade receivables-considered
good 4,390.51 26.05 - - = 4,416.56
(i1} Undisputed trade Receivables - which
have significant increase in credit risk i < = - 5 =
(iii) Undisputed trade Receivables - credit
impaired - - - - - -
(iv) Disputed trade Receivables- considered
good

v) Disputed trade Receivables - which have
significant increase in credit risk

NE

PU




Whitehills Interior Limited
CIN:U26990PN2022PLC216228

Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

(vi) Disputed trade Receivables - credit
impaired

4,390.51

26.05

Total - - - 4,416.56
Trade receivables ageing as on March 31, 2023
% in Lakhs
Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment
Particulars Less than 6 6 months -1 More than 3 Taal
tmonths year 1-2years | 2-3 years years
(i) Undisputed trade receivables-considered
good 26.05 - = “ 26.05
(ii) Undisputed trade Receivables - which
have significant increase in credit risk - - - - - -
(iif) Undisputed trade Receivables - credit
impaired 3 = = z % =
(iv) Disputed trade Receivables- considered
good ] - & - )
v} Disputed trade Receivables - which have
significant increase in credit risk - - - - - -
(vi) Disputed trade Receivables - credit
impaired - - = 5 -
Total 26.05 - - - - 26.05
8. Cash and cash equivalents
Particulars AsaL sk
Mar 31, 2024 Mar 31, 2023
T in Lakhs Tin Lakhs
Balances with banks
On current accounts 405.47 11.75
On escrow Account - -
Cash on hand 2.42 -
Total 407.89 11.75
9. Current loans
Particulars Azt asaL
Mar 31, 2024| Mar 31, 2023
% in Lakhs % in Lakhs
Unsecured, Considered Good
Loans to related partied 0.09 104.61
Total 0.09 104.61

Loans due by directors or other officers of the company or any of them either severally or jointly
with any other person or debts due by firms or private companies respectively in which any director
is a partner or a director or a member during FY 2022-23 is Rs.104.61

(in the FY 2021-22 Rs. Nil).

10. Other current financial assets

Particulars Aot punat
Mar 31, 2024 Mar 31, 2023
% in Lakhs %in Lakhs
Considerad Good
Deposits 61.00 39.90
Closing Stock 2325.14 0.00
Total 2386.14 39.90
11. Other current assets
As at As at
icul.
Farsisulare Mar 31, 2024| Mar 31, 2023
T in Lakhs % in Lakhs
Unsecured, considered good
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Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

Advance to supplier 2017.71 113.92
Advance given to employees for expenses 187 2.28
Prepaid expenses 8.29 2.76
Balance With Revenue Authorities 258.03 0.00
Unbilled Revenue 494.06 0.00
Total 2779.85 118.95
13.Lease liability
Particul As at As at
i Mar 31, 2024 | Mar 31, 2023
% in Lakhs
Non current lease liability 49.90 71.33
Total 49.90 71.33
14. Non current provisions
As at As at
rticul
Gollar Mar 31, 2024 Mar 31, 2023
Current % in Lakhs T in Lakhs
Provision for employee benefits
Gratuity 7.00 0.06
Other Provision -
Total 7.00 0.06
Financial Liabilities
15. Current borrowings
Particulars et A3
Mar 31, 2024 Mar 31, 2023
% in Lakhs % in Lakhs
From banks b <
From other parties
Loan from related parties” AR B 64.50
Total 4,110.21 64.50

" Represent unsecured loans repayable within 1 year in a single bullet payment with interest
rate of 0.5 % over and above of government bends, refer Note no.39

16.Lease liability

Particulars

As at
Mar 31, 2024

As at
Mar 31, 2023

%in Lakhs X in Lakhs
Current lease liability 21.44 18.48
Total 21.44 18.48
17. Trade payables:
Particulars As at As at
e Mar 31, 2024 | Mar 31, 2023
T in Lakhs % in Lakhs
Trade payables 3,925.53 68.65
Total 3,925.53 68.65
FY 23-24
% in Lakhs
Outstanding for following periods from due date of
Particulars T payment — Total
A3z A 1-2 years 2-3 years are N
year 3 years

(i) MSME




Whitehills Interior Limited

CIM:U26590PN2022PLC216228

Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

(i) Others 3,925.53 - - - 3,925.53
(iii)Disputed dues - MSME - - R
(iv)Disputed dues - Others - R -
Total 3,925.53 = - 2 3,925.53
FY 22-23
% in Lakhs
Outstanding for following periods from due date of
t
Particulars REVIEL Total
Less than 1 More than
1-2 years 2-3 years
year 3 years
{i) MSME 0.07 - - - 0.07
{ii) Others 68.58 - - - 68.58
(iii)Disputed dues - MSME - - - = -
(iv)Disputed dues - Others - - E =
Total 68.66 - - - 68.66
18.Income tax liabilities (net)
Particulars As at As at
cutar Mar 31, 2024 | Mar 31, 2023
% in Lakhs % in Lakhs
Current year provision 493.37 37.60
Less: Advanced tax/ TDS receivable 273.11 8.35
Income tax liabilities (net) 220.26 29.25
19. Other current liabilities
= As at As at
Partislare Mar 31, 2024| Mar 31, 2023
% in Lakhs % in Lakhs
Salary payable to employees 19.45 6.64
Advance received from debtors 303.13 9.52
Statutory payables 34.30 33.71
Total 356.87 49.88
20. Current provisions
Particular: Loed Asat
R Mar 31, 2024 Mar 31, 2023
Current % in Lakhs % in Lakhs

Provision for employee benefits

Gratuity

Other provision
Audit fee payable

Total
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Notes ferming part of the Financial Statements for the Quarter Ended 31 March 2024
Notes forming part of the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

20. Revenue from operations

For the year

| Particulars Fer;:e::a;:;fed ended
| i Mar 31,2023
| % in Lakhs
Isale of Service - Interior Design and other
| Speciality Design Services 4,574.44 417.46
|Inventory Sales 5,850.00 -
| Total 10,424.44 417.46
21. Other income
[
| . For the year ended Ere iy
Particulars Mar 31, 2024 ended
| ' Mar 31, 2023
| T in Lakhs
(a) Interest
On Fixed deposits with banks
{Interest income on security depasit 0.67 0.22
i(b) Other non-operating Income 0.00 =
L
[ Total 0.67 0.22
22. Direct Cost
| . For the year ended Forthe year
Particulars Mar 31, 2024 ended
' Mar 31, 2023
% in Lakhs
| Interior Fitouts Expense 1,698.24 232.51
If-\dvertismsn[ Expense . =
iRent Paid - Property 25.24
|Rent Paid - Property - IND AS (25.24)
{Inventory Purchase
1 Total 1698.24 232.51

23. Changes in inventories of finished goods

For the year ended

For the year

Particulars ended
i Mar 31, 2024 Mar 31, 2023
T in Lakhs

| Opening stock - -
| Purchases during the vear 8,192.22 -
Less:

Closing stock 2,325.14 -
| Total 5,867.09 -

24, Employee benefits expense

For the year ended

For the vear

Particulars ended
‘ e Mar 31, 2023
| X in Lakhs
;Satarfes and allowances 242.61 44.07
\ ;
| Contributions to provident fund and other funds 7.90 1.16
:Staff welfare expenses 2 z
| Total 250.51 45,23
25. Finance Costs

. For the year ended AT
| Particulars Mar 31, 3034 ended
! g Mar 31, 2023
‘ % in Lakhs
|Interest on lease libalities 6.76 3.26
|Interest expense - Other 110.59 -
| Total 117.35 3.26

26. Depreciation & Amortisation

For the year ended

For the year

| Particulars ended
| Mar 31, 2024 Mar 31, 2023
T in Lakhs

|

Depreciation of Property, Plant & Equipments

| Amortization (Depreciatien on ROU) 22.70 9.46
Total 22.70 9.46

27. Other expenses

| For th

{ < For the year ended Ortie year

| Particulars Mar 31, 2024 ended

| ' Mar 31, 2023

| T in Lakhs

| Admin Expense 537.55 1.58

Professional Charges” 81.33 2.66

Rent, Rates i Taxes 3.69 0.45
Total 622.56 4.68




WhiteHills Limited
CIN:UZ6990PNZO22PLC216228
Note: forming part of the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

Equity
12. Share capital
5 No. Particulars Axat e
Mar 31, 2024 | Mar 31, 2023
% in Lakhs
fa) |Authorised equity shara capital

No.1,00,000 equity shares (No.Nil equity shares as at March 31, 10.00 10.00 |
2022) of ® 10/- each

10.00 10.00 |
(b) |lssued, subscribad and paid up share capital
No.1,00,000 shans ¥ 5 .
o equity shares (No.Nil equity shares as at March 31 - —_
2022) of ® 10/- each, fully paid-up
Total 10.00 10.00 |

A)  Reconciliation of shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the year

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Equity Shares - -
— No of sharos| % Lakhs No of harez | % Lakhs

At the besinning of the year 100,000 10.00 s =
Add: Changes during the year 100.000 10.00
Qutst: a

utstanding at the end of the 100,000 10.00 100,000 10.00
year

B) Rights, preferences and restrictions attached to equity shares

The company has enly single class of equity shares having a par value of INR 10. Accordingly, all
equity shares rank equally with regard to dividends and share in the Company's residual assets.
Each holder of equity shares is entitled to one vote per share. On winding up of the company, the
holders of equity shares will b= entitled to receive the residual assets of the company, remaining
after distribution of all preferential amounts in proportion to the number of equity shares held.

(4] Shares held by holding/ultimate holding company and/or their subsidiaries/associates
The company being ultimate halding company, there are no shares held by any other holding,
ultimate holding compaiy and their subsidiaries/associates,

Aggregate number of bonus shares {ssued, shares issued for consideration other than cash and
Di shares bought back during the period of five years Immediately preceding the reporting date

There are no bonus sharas issued, shares issued for consideration other than cash and shares bought
back during the period of five years immediately preceding reparting date

13} Details of sharcholders holding more than 5% of shares of the Company

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Particulars
No of shares % holding No of shares % holding
EFC (1) Lid % 51,00% - -
Umesh Sahay HEHARE BHHE 39.00% =
Abhishek Narbarfa Rl Al 10.00% s

Shares held by promoters at the begining of year

Promoter Name No of Shares %of share holding.

Shares held by promoters at the end of year

Promoter Name No of Shares %of share holding % of change
during the year
EFC (1) Ltd ? 51.00 100%
Umesh Sahay arApnn B 39.00 100%
Abhishek Narbarfa L 10.00 100%

As per recards of the company, including its register of shareholders/ members and other
declaration received from shareholders regarding beneficial interest, the above shareholding
represent beth legal and beneficial ownership of shares.

Azat As at

Oth it
i 31 Mar 2014 31 Mar 2023

Securities premium account -
Retained eamings 144171 86.02
Other comprehensive 1ncome -

1.441.71 86.02

(a) Securities premium
account

Balance at the beginning of the year -
Add: additions during the year 1
Balance at the end of the vear =

(b) Retained earnings
Balance at the beginning of the 86.02 2
year
Add: Additions during the yaar 1,355.70 86.02

Balance at the end of the year 1.441.71 86,97

(<) Other comprehensive income
(1) Remeasurement of defined benefit liability (asset) -
Opening balance =
Add: Actuarial gain/(loss) on defined benefit plans (net of tax) for|
the year

Closing balance

Total other comprehensive income =




(a) Securities Premium Reserve
The amount received in excess of face value of the equity shares is recognised in securities premium
reserve.

(b) Retained Earnings
Retained eamnings comprises of the undistributed eamings after taxes.

() Other Comprehensive Income
Other items of ather comprehensive income cansists of currency translation, FYTOCI financial assets
and 3




Whitehills Interior Limited

Deferred Tax Working
Tax Rate 25.17%
Q2 FY23-24 _
Taxable/
Type Particulars Accounting Tax Base (UESROELT DTL/(DTA) | In Lakhs
Base Temporary
Difference B
Assets ROU 7,757,165 - 7,757,165 1,952,323 19.52
Assets Security Deposits 742,422.00 | 1,000,000.00 (257,578) (64,827) (0.65)
Liability Lease Liability 8,078,857 - (8,078,857)| (2,033,287)| (20.33)
Liability Provision for Employee Benefits (Gratuity) 6,260 - [6,260) (1,576} (0.02)]
DTL/(DTA) (147,366)[ (147
10,885 0.11
Q3 FY 23-24
Taxable/
Type Particulars Accounting | .. pase | (Deductible) | iy bray | In Lakns
Base Temporary
Difference
Assets ROU 7,189,567 - 7,189,567 1,809,470 18.0 |
Assets Security Deposits 759,341.00 | 1,000,000.00 (240,659) (60,569) (0.61)
Liability Lease Liability 7,612,980 - (7,612,980)| (1,916,035)| (19.15)
Liability Provision for Employee Benefits (Gratuity) 6,260 - (6,260) (1,576) {0.02)
DTL/(DTA) (168,709) (1.69)
Exp to be book: 21,343 0.21
Q4 FY 23-24
Taxable/
. Accounting (Deductible)
Type Particulars Base Tax Base Temporary DTL/(DTA) |In Lakhs
Difference
Assets ROU 6,621,969 - 6,621,969 1,666,617 16.67
Assets Security Deposits 776,456.00 | 1,000,000.00 (223,544) (56,262) (0.55)
Liability Lease Liability 7,133,369 - (7,133,369)| (1,795326)| (17.95)
Liability Provision for Employee Benefits [Gratuity) 700,318 - (700,318) [176,256) (1.76)
DTL/(DTA) (361,227) (3.61)
Exp to be book: 192,518 1.93




Whitehills Interior Limited
Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

29. Contingent liabilities & commitments ( to the extent not provided for)

As at

Particulars of conti t liabiliti
ingent liabilities Mar 31, 2024

As at
March 31, 2023

% in Lakhs

Contingent liabilities not provided for in respect of

a) Claims against the company not acknowledged as
debt -

b) Guarantee given by the company on behalf of other
company -

C) Others ”

As at
Mar 31, 2023

Particulars of Commitments

As at
March 31, 2022

T in Lakhs

a) Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be
executed on capital account and not provided for s

b) Uncalled liability on shares and other investments -
partly paid

C) Other commitments =

30. Leases

A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an
identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration

Reconciliation of lease liabilities for the year ended March 31, 2024 and March 31, 2024

% in Lakhs

Particulars March 31, 2024

March 31, 2023

Balance at the beginning of the year 89.81
Add : New leases during the year -
Add : Finance cost accrued during the period
Less : Cancellation of leases during the year
Less : Payment of lease liabilities

Balance the end of fﬁgyear




The table below provides details regarding the contractual maturities of lease liabilities on an

undiscounted basis:

% in Lakhs

Particulars

March 31, 2024

March 31, 2023

Less than one year 25.24 -
One to five years 80.37 J
More than five years - -

Total 105.61 -

The following is the break-up of current and non-current lease liabilities as at March 31, 2024

% in Lakhs
Particulars March 31, 2024 | March 31, 2023
Current lease liabilities 21.44 -
Non-current lease liabilities 49.90 -
Total 71.33 -

Interest Expenses of Lease Liabilities

% in Lakhs

Particulars March 31, 2024 | March 31, 2023
Interest on lease liabilities 6.76 7
Following are the changes in the carrying value of right of use assets for the year
ended March 31, 2024
< in Lakhs
Particulars Category of ROU

Asset

Office Space

Balance as on April 01, 2022

Addition 98.38
Depreciation 9.46
Balance as on March 31, 2023 88.92
Addition

Depreciation 22.70
Balance as on March 31, 2024 66.22

The aggregate depreciation expense on ROU assets is included under,deprematwn and

amortization expense in the statement of Profit and Loss.
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024

(All amounts in rupees lakhs except share and per share data, unless otherwise stated)
31 Fair value measurements

(a) Financial instruments by category

Financial assets

31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Particul i i
i FVTPL Fviag | Bmorssed FVTPL FvToC | Amortised
Cost Cost
Trade receivables - - 4,416.56 - - 26.05
Cash and cash equivalents - . 407.89 = - 1175
Loans 0.09 104.61
Other financial assets - - 2,386.14 - - 39.90
Total - - 7,210.67 - - 182.32
Financial liabilities
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Particul i i
& FVTPL FyToc | Amortised FVTPL FvTog | Amortised
Cost Cost
Trade payables - - 3,925.53 - - 68.66
Borrowings 4,110.21 64.50
Lease liabilities - 71.33 - = 89.81
Total - - 8,107.07 - - 222.97

The carrving amounts of cash & cash equivalents, trade receivables, loans and trade payables as at 31st March 2024 and 2023 approximate

the fair value due to their nature.
Carrying amounts of bank deposits, other financial assets, borrowings and other financial liabilities which are subsequently measured at
amortised cost also approximate the fair value due to their nature in each of the periods presented. Fair value measurement of lease

liabilities is not reguired.

32 Fair value hierarchy

Fair values are categorised into different levels in a fair value hierarchy based on the inputs used in the valuation
techniques as follows:

- Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

- Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either

- Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs). The fair
The finance department of the Company includes a team that performs the valuations of financial assets and liabilities
required for financial reporting purposes, including level 3 fair values. This team reports directly to the chief financial
officer (CFO) and the audit committee (AC). Discussions of valuation processes and results are held between the CFO,
AC and the valuation team at least once every three months.

The cost of unguoted investments included in Level 3 of fair value hierarchy approximate their fair value because there is a wide range of
possible fair value measurements and the cost represents estimate of fair value within that range.

The fair values for security deposits was calculated based on cash flows discounted using a current lending rate/borrowing rate.




The following table summarises financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value on a recurring basis and financial assets that
are not measured at fair value on a recurring basis (but fair value disclosures are required):

As at March 31, 2024 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Financial Assets
Trade receivables 4,416.56 4,416.56
Cash and cash equivalents 407.89 407.89
Loans 0.09
Other financial assets 2,386.14 2,386.14
Total - - 7,210.67 7,210.58

Financial Liabilities

Trade payables 3,925.53 3,925.53
Borrowings 4,110.21 4,110.21
Lease liabilities 71.33 71.33
Total - . 8,107.07 8,107.07
As at March 31, 2023 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Financial Assets
Trade receivables 26.05 26.05
Cash and cash equivalents 11.75 11.75
Loans 104.61 104.61
Other financial assets 39.90 39.90
Total - - 182.32 182.32

Financial Liabilities
Trade payables
Borrowings

Lease liabilities

Total

- IQD
' (FRN- 153107W\ ©
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024
(All amounts in rupees lakhs except share and per share data, unless otherwise stated)

33 Segment information

Ind AS 108 operating segment ("Ind AS 108') establishes standards for the way
that the company report information about operating segments and related
disclosures about services, geographic areas and major customers. Based on
the"management approach” as defined in Ind AS 108. Operating segments are
to be reperted in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to
the Chief Operating Decision Maker (CODM). The company's Board is the CODM
and evaluates the company's performance and allocates resources on an
overall basis. The company's sole operating segment is interior designing
services. Accordingly, there are no additional disclosures to be provided under
Ind AS 108, other than those already provided in the financial statements.

Operating Segments

The company's Board has been identified as the Chief Operating Decision
Maker ('CODM), since he is responsible for all major decision with respect to
preparation of budget, planning, expansion, alliance, joint venture, merger
and acquisition, and expansion of any new facility.

Entity wide disclosures

A. Information about products and services
Year ended| Year ended
Revenue from customers: 31 Mar 2024 31 Mar 2023
Sale of services - interior design 4,574.44 417.46
Sales of F&F Trade 5,850.00 -
Total 10,424.44 417.46
B. Information about geographical areas
Year ended| Year ended
Revenue from customers: 31 Mar 2024| 31 Mar 2023
Within India 10,424.44 417.46
QOutside India - -
Total 10,424.44 417.46

C. Information about major customers (from external customers)
Out of the total external revenue of the company, nearly 95% of the revenue is
earned from 1 customer.

Segment assets include all operating assets used by the business segment and
consist principally of fixed assets and current assets.Non current assets held by
the company are located in India

Relationship with
Struck off
34 companies:

The company did not enter into any transaction with compames ROC records for the period
/

ended 31 March 2024 and 31 March 2023.



35
a)

36

No funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed
funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the company
to or in any other person(s) or entity(ies) including foreign entities
(intermediaries) with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or
otherwise, that the intermediary shall, whether directly or indirectly lend or
invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or
on behalf of the company (ultimate beneficiaries) or provide any guarantee,
security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

No funds have been received by the company from or in any other person(s) or
entity(ies) including foreign entities (funding parties) with the understanding,
whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the company shall, whether
directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in
any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the funding party (ultimate
beneficiaries) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the
Ultimate Beneficiaries;

No prodceedings have been initiated or pending against the company for
holding Benami Property under the Benami transactions (Prohibition) Act 1988
(45 of 1988) and the Rules made thereunder.
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024
(All amounts in rupees lakhs except share and per share data, unless otherwise stated)

37 Financial Risk Management

The company’s principal financial liabilities comprise trade payables and other borrowings. The main purpose of these
financial liabilities is to finance the company’s operations. The company’s principal financial assets include security
deposits, trade & other receivables, unbilled revenue and cash and short-term deposits that derive directly from its
operations.

The company is exposed to the following risks from its use of financial instruments:

- Credit risk

- Liguidity risk

- Market risk
This note presents information about the company’s exposure to each of the above risks, the company’s objectives,
policies and proceasses for measuring and managing risk.

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the company if a customer or counterparty to a financial instrument fails to
meet its contractual obligations resulting in a financial loss to the company. Credit risk arises principally from trade
receivables, unbilled revenue, cash & cash equivalents and deposits with banks.

Trade receivables and unbilled revenue
The company earns its revenue from customers by providing interior designing services.

The company’s exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by the individual characteristics of each customer. The
company performs ongoing credit evaluations of its customers’ financial condition and limits the amount of credit
extended when deemed necessary, but generally requires no collateral. The company also maintains allowances for
potential credit losses. In estimating the required allowances, the company takes into consideration the overall
quality and ageing of the receivable portfolio, the existence of a limited amount of credit insurance and specifically
identified customer and vendor risks.

The company limits its exposure to credit risk from trade receivables by establishing a maximum credit period of 45
days for its customers. An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date on an individual basis for major
customers. The calculation is based on historical data.

Based on the business environment in which the company operates, management considers that there is significant
increase in credit risk for trade receivables if the payments are more than 30 days past due and the trade receivables
are in default (credit impaired) if the payments are more than 90 days past due. The company has not experienced
any significant impairment losses in respect of trade receivables in the past years.

Cash and cash equivalents and deposits with banks._
The company held cash and cash equivage;ﬁ/s/@'ﬁnvlr‘rd

yA S




(i) Exposure to credit risk

The carrying amount of financial assets represents the maximum credit exposure. The maximum exposure to credit
risk at the reporting date was:

Financial assets for which loss allowance is measured using 12 months Expected Credit Losses (ECL)
Particulars As at As at
31 Mar 2024 31 Mar 2023

Other non-current financial assets - -
Cash and cash equivalents 407.89 11.75

Other current financial assets 2,779.85 118.95
Total 3,187.74 130.70

Financial assets for which loss allowance is measured using Life time Expected Credit Losses (ECL)

Particulars As at As at

31 Mar 2024 31 Mar 2023

Trade receivables 4,416.56 26.05
Total 4,416.56 26.05

(i) Provision for expected credit losses:

(a) Financial assets for which loss allowance is measured using 12 month expected credit losses

The company has assets where the counter- parties have sufficient capacity to meet the obligations and where the
risk of default is low.

(b) Financial assets for which loss allowance is measured using life time expected credit losses
The company has customers with strong capacity to meet the obligations and therefore the risk of default is
negligible. On account of the adoption of Ind AS 109, the company uses ECL model to assess the impairment loss. The
company uses a provision matrix to compute the ECL allowance for trade receivables. Below mentioned is the
movement of impairment loss recognised on financial assets using lifetime expected credit loss method.

(iii) Ageing analysis of trade receivables
The ageing analysis of the trade receivables is as below:

0-60 days 61-120 | More than
Ageing Not due days past | 120 days Total Provision Net

past due

due past due

Gross carrying
amount as 31 March - 2,311.31 145.70 | 1,959.55| 4,416.56 - 4,416.56
2024
Gross carrying
amount as 31 March - 26.05 - " 26.05 - 26.05
2023

(iv) Reconciliation of impairment loss provisions
The movement in the allowance for impairment in respect of financial assets during the year was as follows:
Particulars Trade receivables
Balance as at 31 March 2022 =
Impairment loss recognised =
Amounts written off -
Balance as at 31 March 2023 -
Impairment loss recognised -
Amounts written off -
Balance as at 31 March 2024 -

Based on historic default rates, the company belj
other assets as the amounts are insignificant.
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37 Financial risk management (cont'd)

38

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting the obligations associated with its
financial Uabilities that are settled by delivering cash or another financial asset. The Company’s approach to

The Company’s finance team is responsible for liquidity and funding. In addition, processes and policies related

to such risks are overseen by the senior management.

Maturities of financial liabilities

The following are the contractual maturities of non-derivative financial liabilities, based on contractual cash

flows:

31 March 2024

Contractual cash flows

Contractual maturities of Carrying Less than 1

: Ayl Total 1-2 years 2-5 years
financial liabilities value year
Trade and other payables 3,925.53 3,925.53 3,713.25 212.28 -
31 March 2023

Contractual cash flows
tractual maturities of Carryi

C.on ra‘c u? ma THInG Total Lessthan 4 1-2 years 2-5 years
financial liabilities value year

Trade and other payables 212.28 212.28 212.28 - -

Market risk

Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices, such as foreign exchange rates and interest rates will affect
the Company’s income. The objective of market risk management is to manage and control market risk
exposures within acceptable parameters, while optimising the return.

Currency risk

The Company is not exposed to foreign currency risk as all transactions are denominated in a Indian currency,
which is its functional and reporting currency.

Capital Management

The Company’s policy is to maintain a strong capital base so as to maintain investor, creditor and market
confidence and to sustain future development of the business. Management monitors the return on capital as
well as the level of dividends to ordinary shareholders.

As at As at
31 Mar 2023 31 Mar 2023
Total liabilities 8,692.01 302.66
Less : Cash and cash equivalents 407.89 11.75
Adjusted net debt 8,284.13
Total equity 1,451.71
Net debt to equity ratio 5.71
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d)

Terms and conditiens of transactions with the related parties
Transactions with the related parties are made on normal commercial terms and

Outstanding balances of related parties at the year-end are unsecured and
interest free and settlement occurs in cash. For the year ended 31 March 2023,
the company has not recorded any impairment of receivables relating to amounts
owed by related parties (31 March 2022: Nil). This assessment is undertaken each
financial year through examining the financial position of the related party and
the market in which the related party operates,f;:-' —




Whitehills Interior Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024
(All amounts in rupees lakhs except share and per share data, unless otherwise stated)

40 Dues to Micro and Small Enterprises

4

The Ministry of Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises has issued an office memorandum dated 26
August 2008 which recommends that the Micro and Small Enterprises should mention in their
correspondence with its customers the “Entrepreneurs Memorandum Number” as allocated after filing
of the Memorandum. Accordingly, the disclosure in respect of the amounts payable to such
enterprises as at 31 March 2019 has been made in the financial statements based on information
received and available with the Company. Further in view of the management, the impact of interest,
if any, that may be payable in accordance with the provisions of the Micro, Small and Medium
Enterprises Development Act, 2006 (‘the Act’) is not expected to be material. The Company has not
received any claim for interest from any supplier in this regard.

Particulars

As at
31 March 2023

As at
31 March 2022

i) Principal amount due to suppliers registered under the MSMED

Act as remaining unpaid as

at 31 March

#REF!

ii)

MSMED Act as remaining unpaid on 31 March

Interest due thereon due to suppliers registered under the

iii) Principal amounts paid to suppliers registered under the MSMED

Act, beyond the appointed day during the year.

iv) Interest paid other than under section 16 of the MSMED Act,
beyond the appointed day during the year.

v) Interest paid undar secticn 16 of MSMED Act to suppliers
registered under the MSMED Act, beyond the appointed day during

vi) Interest due and payable towards suppliers registered under

MSMED Act, for payments a

lready made.

vii) Further interest remaining due and payable for earlier years.

Additional regulatory info
Analytical ratios

rmation

Ratios Numerator Denominat|As at 31 As at 31 March |% of Variance
March 2022
2023
Current ratio (in times) Current assets |Current liak 1.30 - 100%
Debt equity ratio (in times) Total debt Shareholder 2.83 - 100%
Debrt service coveraze Earnings for |Debt 79.70 - 100%
ratio (in times) Debt Services |services (
( Profit after |Interest
tax and lease
+Depreceation |payments
+Finance cost |+ Principle
+profit on sale|repayment
of property  |[s)
plan and
equipment)
Return on equity ratio (in %|Net Profit for | Average sha 1.75 - 100%
Trade receivables turnover|Revenue from {Average tra 4.69 - 100%
Trade payables turnover ra|Other expense:j Average tra 0.85 100%
Net capital turnover ratio |Revenue from |Working 7.69 100%
capital
(current
assests-
current
liabilities)
Net profit ratio (in %) Net Profit for t|Revenue frc¢ 0.13 100%
Return on capital Profit before |Capital 0.33 - 100%
employed (in %) tax and employed
finance cost  |(Tangible
Net worth
+ Total
debt +
Deferred
tax
liability)
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Explanation for variance

Current Ratio: The ratio has been impacted due to increase in security deposits and trade receivables

Debt Equity Ratio: The ratio has been impacted due to increase in debt

Debt Service Coverage Ratio: The ratio has been impacted due to repayment of lease liability and increase in EBIDTA
Return on Equity: The ratio has been impacted due to profit of current year

Trade receivables Turnover Ratio: The ratio has been impacted due to increase in average trade receivables and turnover.
Trade pavables turnover ratio: The ratio has been impacted due to increase in average trade payables and turnover.

Net Capital turnover ratio: The ratio has been impacted due to increase in turnover

Net Profit Ratio: The net profit is increased due to increase in turnover

Return on Capital Employed: The ratio has been impacted due to increase in profit

SRkl il

Subsequent Event

The compary has evaluated subsequent event from the balance sheet date through May 29, 2023, the
date at which financial statments were available to be issued and determined no event has occured
that would require adjustment and disclosure in the financial statement.

Previous year comparatives

Previous year’s figures have been reclassified/rearranged/regrouped wherever necessary te conform
to current year’s presentation. -

As per our report of even date attached
#REF!
#REF!
#REF!

Ll's_ inl

!"“

#REF! e
#REF! Director
#REF! DIN:01732060 DIN: 01873087
#REF!

UDIN: 231989833GUBMM2639



Whitehills Interior Limited

FY 23-24

Particulars Amount
Total Debt 4,110.21 |
Shareholders Equity 1,451.71
Debt Equity Ratio 2.83 |
Particulars Amount i
Revenue from operation 10,421.44 |
Average Trade Receivables 2,221.31 |
TR T/o Ratio 1.69
Particulars Amount
Revenue from operation 10,421.44
Working Capital 1,355.41
Net Cap T/o Ratio 7.69
Particulars Amount
PBT 1,845.65
Capital Employed 5,561.92 |
Return on Capital Employed 0.33 |

Particulars Amount
Current Assets 301.27
Current Liability 231.26
Current Ratio 1.30
Particulars Amount
NP 1,355.70
Avg Shareholders Equity 773.87
Return on Equity 175
Particulars Amount
Net Credit Purchases 1,698.24
Avg Trade Payables 1,997.06
TP T/o Ratio 0.85
Particulars Amount
Net Profit 1,355.70
Revenue from operation 10,424.44
NP Ratio 0.13
Particulars Amount
Earnings for debt service 1,473.05
debt service 18.48

Debt Service Coverage Ratio

79.70494655

Lease liability repaid

Return on Investments

1,848,128.00




